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1. Institutional Profile

1.1. Introduction

The Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption (CIABOC) was
established by Act No. 19 of 1994 and was operational from 15™ December 1994 with the
abolishing of the Bribery Commissioner’s Department established under Bribery Act No. 09
of 1954. The Anti-Corruption Act No. 09 of 2023 further empowers the Commission to

combat bribery and corruption.

1.2. Vision and Mission

1.2.1. Vision

Make Sri Lanka a bribery and corruption-free nation.

1.2.2. Mission

Minimize bribery and corruption in Sri Lanka by implementing court action for
allegations of bribery, corruption and illegal accumulation of assets by persons after fair
and impartial investigations and by raising awareness among all sections of society on

combatting bribery and corruption.
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1.3. Key Functions

Receive complaints on bribery /corruption / illegally acquired assets.
Conduct impartial and fair investigations on received complaints.

Institute proceedings in appropriate courts for complaints that disclose
sufficient facts and conduct prosecutions of such cases.

Provide information to relevant parties after completion of investigations/
proceedings.

Raise awareness among all sections of society on fighting bribery &
corruption.

Implement the United Nations Convention against Corruption (UNCAC) in Sri
Lanka

1.4. Composition of the Institution

Legal
Division

Investigation
Division

Secretariat

The Administration
Commission : Division
. Director
comprised of
h General -
EREES Finance
commissioners Division

Internal Audit
Division

Planning
Division

Prevention
Division
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1.5. Divisions coming under the purview of the Commission to
Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption

1.5.1. The Commission

In accordance with Section 2 (b) of the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery
or Corruption Act No. 19 of 1994, His Excellency the President, on the recommendation of
the Constitutional Council, appointed the members to the Commission for a term of five
years and they discharged duties until 31.12.2023. (The new Commission appointed in
terms of the provisions of the Anti-Corruption Act No. 09 of 2023 assumed duties on
01.01.2024.)

The Commission consists of three members, and in terms of Act No. 19 of 1994, two out
of the three members are required to be retired Judges of the Supreme Court or of the
Court of Appeal and the third member is required to be a person with wide experience
relating to the investigation of crime and law enforcement. The President appoints as
Chairman of the Commission, one of the members of the Commission who is a retired
Judge of the Supreme Court or of the Court of Appeal.

Accordingly, the following Commission members served from 07™ December 2020 to 31
December 2023.

e Justice Eva Wanasundera (Retired Judge of the Supreme) - Chairperson
e Justice Deepali Wjesundera (Retired Judge of the Court of Appeal) - Member
e  Mr. Chandra Nimal Wakishta (Retired DIG of Police) - Member

In accordance with the provisions of the Anti-Corruption Act No. 09 of 2023, His
Excellency the President appointed the following new members to the Commission and
they assumed duties on 01.01.2024.

e Justice W.M.N.P. Iddawela - Chairman

(Former Judge of the Court of Appeal and former Deputy
Secretary-General of Parliament)

e Mr. K. Bernard Rajapakse - Member
(Former Senior General Manager of the People’s Bank)
e President’s Counsel Mr. Chethiya Goonesekera - Member

(Additional Solicitor General)

4|page
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1.5.2. Director General

In accordance with Section 16 (1) of the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery
or Corruption Act No. 19 of 1994, the President appoints a Director General for the
Prevention of Bribery or Corruption to assist the Commission in the discharge of functions
assigned to the Commission. High Court Judge Mr. W. K. D. Wijeratne has been
performing as the Director General of this Commission since 30.01.2020.

In case of assets acquired by bribery or by the proceeds of bribery or converted to property
by bribery under Section 23 A of the Bribery Act, the Director-General shall institute
criminal proceedings on an indictment before the High Court (in terms of section 8 of the
Bribery Act).

The Director-General shall institute proceedings in the Magistrate’s Court in respect of the
offences under Section 70 of the Bribery Act. As per the Gazette Extraordinary 849/15
dated 15.12.1994 of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, the Director-General
has the authority to file cases before the Colombo Magistrate Court and High Court as the
case may be with regard to offences of soliciting, offering and accepting of gratifications in
Part 1l of Bribery Act and all offences cited in Part VV of the Bribery Act. Further, the
Director General shall take action on the direction of the Commission to file cases before
the Magistrate Court in respect of the offences committed under the Declaration of Assets
and Liabilities Law No. 1 of 1975 of the National State Assembly.

In addition to the above responsibilities, the Director General for the Prevention of Bribery
and Corruption is the Chief Accounting Officer responsible for the administration. For this
purpose, the Director General is assisted by the Director (Administration) and Chief
Accountant (Finance).

1.5.3. Legal Division

The Director General appointed under Section 16 of the Commission to Investigate
Allegations of Bribery or Corruption Act No. 19 of 1994 performs also as the Head of the
Legal Division.

As of 31.12.2023, one Additional Director General, 03 Deputy Director Generals, 08
Assistant Director Generals and 10 Assistant Directors (Legal) served in this division to
assist the Director General.

The Commission has an independent Legal Division responsible for evaluating evidence
and preparing plaints and indictments. Further, the officers of this division conduct
prosecutions on behalf of the Commission.

S5|page
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1.5.4. Investigation Division

All investigations pertaining to allegations of bribery and corruption are conducted by the
Investigation Division of this Commission. Officers have been appointed to this Division
under the powers assigned by the Bribery Act No.11 of 1954 and the Commission to
Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption Act No.19 of 1994.

Senior Superintendent of Police, Mr. A. G. Nuwan Asanga, has been discharging duties as
the Director of the Investigations Division since 12 July 2021.

The Investigation Division comprises 226 Police Officers appointed from the Department
of Police on a secondment basis.

1.5.5. Secretariat

The Secretariat registers all the complaints received by the Commission to Investigate
Allegations of Bribery or Corruption and takes action to forward them to the Commission for
appropriate orders.  Mrs. Apsara Caldera (Special Grade Officer in the Sri Lanka
Administrative Service) has been discharging duties as the Head of this division since 06"
April 2021.

1.5.6. Administration Division

Administrative matters of the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or
Corruption are carried out under the Director-Administration. Mr. AM.R.S.A. Adikari,
(Class | Officer in the Sri Lanka Administrative Service) has been performing duties as the
Director-Administration since 2014.

Key functions of this division are,

e Matters related to the management of institution’s human resource
e Matters pertaining to human resource development
e Matters related to the management of the Transport Unit

e Maintenance of office buildings and office premises

1.5.7. Finance Division

This division contributes to the successful implementation of the financial management
activities of the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption. The
division performs its activities under the guidance of Mr. W.M.D. Bandara (Class 1
Accountant in the Sri Lanka Accountants’ Service) assisted by Mrs. G.N. Jayasinghe,
Accountant (Procurement) and staff. Financial Management, preparation of accounts
reports and the below-mentioned activities are the main functions of this division.

6|lpage
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e All payments, including the salaries of all officers of the Commission
except that of the officers of Investigation Division.

e Procurement activities

e Maintaining the Public Officers Advance Account to make payments of
special advances, distress loans and festival advances.

e Maintaining the Raid Advance Account to issue advances to be used by the

decoys in raids.

1.5.8. Internal Audit Division

The Internal Audit Division was established in November 2018 to strengthen the internal
management of the Commission. Mrs. U. P. Wijehewa (Class II officer in the Sri Lanka
Accountants’ Service) discharged duties as the Internal Auditor until 31.05.2023, and Mrs.
S. S. Matara Archchi (Class I officer in the Sri Lanka Accountants’ Service) is performing
as the Internal Auditor from 26.07.2023. This division takes action to ensure the accuracy
of accounts, compliance of activities with the Financial Regulations, Establishments Code

and other circulars, and ascertain transparency.

The division will also hold Management and Audit Committee meetings to respond the
Internal and General Audit observations on time, assign duties to responsible officers of
different divisions for activities requiring attention, and conduct follow-up.

1.5.9. Planning Division

The Planning Division was established in November 2018 to carry out the activities
conducted by the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption with
higher success. Preparation of progress reports of activities carried out by each division is
the main task of this division. In addition, it also performs the following tasks

e Preparation of the Annual Performance Report, Progress Report submitted to
the Committee Stage Debate and other progress reports.

e Preparation of the Annual Action Plan and monitoring its implementation.

e Monitor the progress of the five-year National Action Plan implementation.
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CHAPTER TWO 2. Progress and the Future Outlook

2.1. Progress of the institution

2.2. Challenges

2.3. Future Goals
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2. Progress and the Future Outlook

2.1. Progress of the institution

2.1.1. Complaints Received
2.1.1.1. Total complaints received - 3,431
2.1.1.2. Number of complaints on the same matter received through different
channels (via e-mail, verbal complaints and through the Presidential Secretariat and
Prime Minister’s Office) — 253
2.1.1.3. No. of complaints forwarded to the Complaints Review Committee - 2,789

No. of complaints ordered to investigate - 1,152

Complaints ordered to investigate
Bribery Corruption Complaints on illegal Uettl
complaints complaints acquisition of assets
131 945 76 1,152
Number of complaints ordered not to investigate - 766
_ Number of
Description .
complaints
No. of complaints dismissed (due to insufficient material or 766
irrelevant to the Bribery Act)
Total 766
Number of complaints referred to other institutions - 613
- Number of
Description .
complaints
Number of complaints referred to other institutions for action as they 613
were not within the scope of the Commission Act
Total 613

Number of complaints ordered to call reports from the Legal Division and
other institutions — 258

L Number of
Description .
complaints
No. of complaints for which reports were called from other 753
institutions (Ministries/ Departments)
Number of complaints called for legal reports to consider initiating 00
investigations
Total 258
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2.1.1.4. Number of complaints received for raids - 73

2.1.1.5. Number of complaints received in each quarter of 2023

No. of complaints received in the first quarter 740
No. of complaints received in the second quarter 665
No. of complaints received in the third quarter 978
No. of complaints received in the fourth quarter 1,048
Total complaints received in 2023 3,431

2.1.2. Raids

Total raids
Successful raids
Unsuccessful raids
Postponed raids

No. of suspects arrested in raids

.
- 27
- 04
- 57

** One raid conducted in 2022 became successful on 10.11.2023.

Details of the suspects arrested in raids conducted in 2023

S
Z ionati = = 2
= Institution Designation of the 23 _53
o arrested officer IS =g &
& s & | 85 &
7 < ==
. Chairman 01
01 | Pradeshiya Sabha Driver 01 02
Inspector of Police 02
Sub I tor of Poli 02
02 | Sri Lanka Police U nispector of Touee 16
Police Sergeant 07
Police Constable 05
Teachers’ Service 1 01
03 | Ministry of Education 02
Principal 01

l1|page
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s
Z. q g - -
= Institution Designation of the 23 5z
= arrested officer g% s g $
& = B S 5 E
Z = ==
04 | Consumer Affairs Authority Investigation Officer 02 02
Local Government
05 | Commissioner’s Office Secretary 01 01
(Pradeshiya Sabha -Sooriyawewa)
Senior Depot Inspector 01
Regional Transport 01
06 | Sri Lanka Transport Board Mar_lager SLTB 04
Officer In-charge 01
Supervisor of Sports 01
(Retired)
National Water Supply and National Water Supply and
o7 | Drainage Board Labourer (Grade | Drainage Board Labourer 01 01
Xiv) (Grade xiv)
08 | Regional Engineer’s Office Technical Officer 01 01
09 Land Commissioner General’s Colonization Officer 01 01
Department
10 Ministry of Justice and Law Coroner (Temporary) 01 0
Reforms Office Employee Assistant 01
Secretary (Actin 01
11 | Urban Council Y 9 02
Revenue Inspector 01
Agricultural Research and 01
Department of Agrarian Production Assistant
12 —— . 02
Development Divisional Agrarian 01
Development Officer
13 Departmer_1t of Forest Beat Forest Officer 02 02
Conservation
14. | Ministry of Health Pharmacist 01 01
Road Passenger Transport N
15, Authority — Eastern Province Officer in-Charge 01 01
16. Civil Persons 02 02
17 | Divisional Secretariat Grama Niladhari 02 02
Primary Level (Semi — 01
o Skilled ) labourer
Department of Immigration and - -
18 Emigration Office Employee Assistant 01 05
Civil Persons 03
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S
Z. q . - -
= Institution Designation of the 23 5z
= arrested officer g% s g $
& St | 35 E
7 = ==
19 | Sri Lanka Mahaweli Authority Unit Manager (Acting) 01 01
20 | Samurdhi Authority Sam“rdh' Development 01 01
Officer
Geological Survey and Mines Regional Mining Engineer 01
21 : 02
Bureau Driver 01
22 | Judicial Service Commission Quazi Judge 01 01
Chairman 01
23. | Central Environmental Authority FO”T‘er Member of 01 03
Parliament
Civil Officer 01
Total 57 57
Number of persons quarterly arrested in raids conducted in 2023
No. of suspects arrested in the first quarter 20
No. of suspects arrested in the Second quarter 15
No. of suspects arrested in the third quarter 11
No. of suspects arrested in the fourth quarter 11
Total number of suspects arrested in 2023 57
2.1.3. Investigations
2.1.3.1. Number of files completed by each Investigation Unit in 2023
Number of investigation files completed in 2023 - 3,219
Serial Division No. of files
No completed
1 Corruption Investigation Division | 569
2 Corruption Investigation Division |1 424
3 Corruption Investigation Division IlI 342

13 |page



ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT - CIABOC 2023

4 Corruption Investigation Division 1V 426
5 Assets Investigation Division 362
6 Open Inquiry Division 842
7 Raid | 84
8 Raid Il 45
9 Raid 11 30
10 Raid IV 36
11 Confidential and Intelligence Investigation Unit 59
12 Money Laundering Investigation Unit 00
Total 3,219

2.1.3.2 Time analysis of files referred to Legal Division on completion of
Investigations

Period No. of Cases
2001-2005 04
2006-2010 16
2011-2015 346
2016-2020 1,419
2021-2023 1,434

Total 3,219

2.1.4. Prosecutions

Total number of cases filed in the year 2023 - 60
(Magistrate’s Court - 04, High Court - 56)

Cases filed in the Magistrate’s Court - 04

. Cases of not
Corruption
Bribery cases - disclosing assets Total
cases e
and liabilities
04 00 00 04
Number of persons prosecuted in the Magistrate’s Court - 04
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e Samurdhi Development Officer 01
e Police Constable 02
e Time Keeper 01

04

Number of cases filed in the High Court - 56

Bribery cases Corruption ac(ﬁ;:ftsisrf of Total
cases illegal assets
51 03 02 56
Number of persons prosecuted in the High Court - 71
e Former Chief Minister — North-Central Province 01
e Summons and Writ Executor 01
e Planning Officer — Urban Development Authority (Uva Province) 01
e Director — Urban Development Authority (Uva Province) 01
e Police Constable 08
e Police Constable -Driver 01
e Police Sergeant 01
e Sub Inspector of Police 07
e Inspector of Police 02
e Superintendent of Police 02
e Civil Persons 13
e Beat Forest Officer 01
e Former Document Assistant (Ministry of Education) 01
e Bus driver 01
e Controller of Minor Staff 01
e Public Health Inspector 02
e Management Assistant 03
e Labour Officer 03
e Land Officer 01
e Electrician 01
e Divisional Officer (Agrarian Services Department) 01
¢ Acting Controller of Health 01
e (Grama Niladhari 02
e Civil Security 01
e Senior Assessor 01
e Deputy Director of Customs 01
e Principal 01
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e Former Chairman — Ports Authority 01
e Former Managing Director — Ports Authority 01
e Fomer Human Resources Manager — Ports Authority 01
e Ticket Checker — SLTB 03
e Clerk — SLTB 01
e Inspector — Programme Producer 01
e Commissioner General of Lands 01
e Investigation Officer 02
Total 1

2.1.5. Cases concluded

Number of cases concluded by the Court in 2023 — 69
Magistrate’s Court - 09

. . Cases of not
Bribery Corruption disclosing Total
cases cases assets/liabilities
Convictions 04 ~ — 04
Acquittals 04 ~ — o
Discharges B } - _
Withdrawals - 01 ~ o
Other - - _ _
Total 08 " - ¢
High Court - 60
] ] Cases on
Bribery | Corruption acquisition of | Total
cases cases .
illegal assets
Convictions 15 — — 5
Acquittals 20 01 0l 22
Discharges 1 08 %0 P
Withdrawals 01 - — ol
Other 03 B - »
Total 50 09 o 60
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2.1.6. The revenue government received from prosecutions in 2023

Fines of Magistrate’s Courts

Penalties of Magistrate’s Courts

Compensations of Magistrate’s Courts
Fines of High Courts
Penalties of High Courts

Compensations of High Courts

2.1.7. Pending cases
Number of cases pending as at 31.12.2023 — 245

Rs. 15,000.00

Rs.  1,000.00

Rs. --

Rs. 383,000.00

Rs. 169,000.00

Rs. 50,000.00
Rs. 618.000.00

Number of cases pending in the Magistrate’s Courts

Number of cases pending in the High Courts

35

- 208

Number of cases pending before High Court Trial-at-Bar -

02

Time analysis of pending cases (according to the year of receiving the complaint)

Court
Period . High Court | Magisitrate’s | Total Cases
High Court Trial at Bar Court

2001 - 2005 04 -- -- 04
2006 - 2010 13 -- 04 17
2011 - 2015 66 01 15 82
2016 - 2020 114 01 16 131
2021 - 2023 11 -- -- 11

Total 208 02 35 245

2.1.8. Convictions

In 2023, the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption was able
to convict 19 individuals in 19 cases.

Details of the persons convicted in 2023

Serial o L Designation of No.
No. LS on theg convict convicted NID, 0G0
Institute of Advanced
1 Technical Education — Store-keeper 01 01
Labuduwa
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Serial o Designation of No.
No. Institution the convict convicted No. of cases
2 Civil persons 10 10
3 Sri Lanka Police Police Constable 01 01
4 Geological Survey and Mines Office Labourer 01 01
Bureau
5 Department of Motor Traffic Ofﬁ.ce Employee 01 01
Assistant
6 Road Passenger Transport Management 01 01
Board Assistant
Prince of Wales College,
7 Moratuwa. School Watcher 01 01
8 Cultural Center - Panadura Watcher 01 01
National Water Resources and | Assistant to the
9 . . 01 01
Drainage Board Engineer
: Assistant Title
10 Department of Land Title Investigation 01 01
Settlement :
Officer
Total 19 19
Number convicted in each quarter of 2023
No. convicted in the first quarter 01
No. convicted in the second quarter 04
No. convicted in the third quarter 06
No. convicted in the fourth quarter 08
Total number convicted in 2023 19
2.1.9. Awareness Raising Programmes on Preventing Corruption
'g S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wn Z
Police City Traffic -
1 | 02.01.2023 | Raising awareness among the officers of the Colombo
Police City Traffic
Police Training
Prevention programme conducted for Police College. Boralanda
2 03.01.2023 Officers g%
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
3 04.01.2023 | Illegal Assets Investigation Division — CID Kirulapana
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
4 06.01.2023 Officers College, Kalutara
Raising awareness among the officers of the e
5 12.01.2023 Electricity Board Piliyandala
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
6 17.01.2023 | the Kegalle Divisional Secretariat Kegalle
. 18.01.2023 Ralsm.g awareness among the officers of the Piliyandala
Electricity Board
20.01.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
8 R Officers College, Nikaweratiya
20.01.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
9 R the Warakapola Divisional Secretariat Warakapola
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
10 | 25.01.2023 . . . o
the Nawalapitiya Divisional Secretariat Nawalapitiya
e Yatimawara Divistonal Secreara (phase | Diisional Screaria
11 27.01.2023 II) Yatinuwara
Raising awareness among the officers of the
12 | 31.01.2023 Department of Agrarian Development Colombo 07
Raising awareness among the officers of the
13 | 31.01.2023 | Department of Motor Traffic, and Werahera
installation of a Complaint Box.
01.02.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
14 R Officers College, Aralaganwila
Raising awareness among the officers of the -
15 | 01.02.2023 Electricity Board Piliyandala
16 | 01022023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training

Officers

College, Kalladi
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
17 | 02.02.2023 Officers College, Pahalagama
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
18 | 02.02.2023 .. . . Iy
the KiriElla Divisional Secretariat KiriElla
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat ,
19 | 01.02.2023 .o .
the Ayagama Divisional Secretariat Ayagama
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
20 | 03.02.2023 Officers College, Kalutara
08.02.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
21 o the Rasnayakepura Divisional Secretariat Rasnayakepura
09.02.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of Nikaweratiya
22 R the Nikaweratiya Divisional Secretariat Divisional Secretariat
Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
o3 | 09.02.2023 .S .
Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
15.02.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
24 R the Galigamuwa Divisional Secretariat Galigamuwa
o5 | 16.02.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon E}@ctrmty
Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
26 | 16.02.2023 the Giribawa Divisional Secretariat Giribawa
21.02.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
27 R the Rambukkana Divisional Secretariat Rambukkana
27 .02.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
238 o the Harispatthuwa Divisional Secretariat Harispatthuwa
28.02.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
29 R Officers College, Pahalagama
01.03.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
30 o Officers College, Aralaganwila
a1 | 01032023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
Officers

College, Kalladi
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
32 | 02.03.2023 Officers College, Boralanda
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
33 | 03032023 Officers College, Kalutara
07.03.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
34 R Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
10.03.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the System ‘C’ -
35 o Sri Lanka Mahaweli Authority DehiAtthakandiya
Raising awareness among the officers of the
36 | 13.03.2023 Department of Inland Revenue
Prevention programme conducted for Police
37 | 06.03.2023 Officers
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
33 | 16032023 Officers College, Aralaganwila
17.03.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police | Nikaweratiya Police
39 R Officers Training College,
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
40 | 17:03.2023 Officers College, Pahalagama
. . Police Training
41 | 22032023 Prevention programme conducted for Police College.
Officers .
Mahiyanganaya
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
42 | 23032023 Officers College, Boralanda
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
43 | 24.03.2023 Officers College, Kalutara
- Servatius College,
44 | 31.03.2023 Training workshop for School Prefects Matara
97.03.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the | Department of Agrarian
45 R Department of Agrarian Services Services
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
46 | 29032023 Officers College, Kundasale
28.03.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
47 e

Ceylon Electricity Board

Board, Piliyandala
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'§ <Z5 Date Programme/Activity Venue
»
30.03.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
48 o Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
49 10.04.2023 .. 2 ) ..
the Poojapitiya Divisional Secretariat Poojapitiya
18.04.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
50 o the Pathadumbara Divisional Secretariat Pathadumbara
Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
51 28.04.2023 Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
Police Training
College, Pahalagama
59 08.05.2023 | Prevention programme conducted for Police
Officers
53 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
09.05.2023 | Officers Training College,
09.05.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
54 T Officers College, Aralaganwila
. . Police Training
55 | 10052023 Prevention programme conducted for Police College,
Officers .
Mahiyanganaya
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
56 | 10092023 | ehcer College, Kalladi
11.05.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
57 o Officers College, Boralanda
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
58 | 11.05.2023 Officers College, Kalutara
Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
59 18.05.2023 .. .
Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
50 24.05.2023 Raising awareness arpong the officers of the Matara
Department of Agrarian Development
25 05.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
61 o the Udunuwara Divisional Secretariat Udunuwara
6o | 26052023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
Officers

Training College,
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
63 | 20052023 Officers College, Pahalagama
26.05.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
64 o Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
) Sri Lanka Institute of
Prevention programme conducted for
65 | 26.05.2023 Development
government officers .. .
Administration
31.05.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
66 R Officers College, Aralaganwila
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
67 | 31.05.2023 Officers College, Kalladi
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Divisional Secretariat,
gg | 31.05.2023 e e . o
the DehiOwita Divisional Secretariat DehiOwita
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
69 | 01.06.2023 Officers College, Elpitiya
Raising awareness among the officers of the Criminal Investications
70 | 02.06.2023 | Financial and Commercial Crimes &
.. . Department
Investigation Division
Raising awareness among the officers of the Department of Inland
71 | 05.06.2023 D
epartment of Inland Revenue Revenue
Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
72 | 07.06.2023 . o
Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
73 | 07:06.2023 Officers College, Kalutara
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
74 | 07062023 Officers College, Badulla
. : Police Training
25 | 07.06.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police College,
Officers i
Mahiyanganaya
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
76 | 07.06.2023 | Officers College, Boralanda
77 | 14062023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity

Ceylon Electricity Board

Board, Piliyandala
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
21.06.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
8 o Officers Training College,
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
79 | 22062023 Officers College, Pahalagama
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
go | 20.06:2023 Officers College, Elpitiya
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
g1 | 28.06.2023 | - CTIONPIOE ! College,
Officers .
Mahiyanganaya
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
g2 | 05072023 Officers College, Kalutara
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
g3 | 07.07.2023 Officers College, Kalladi
Raising awareness
08.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police | among Police Officers
84 o Officers in the Chilaw Police
Division
Prevention programme conducted for Police Western Province
g5 | 08.07.2023 prog (South) Motor Traffic
Officers o
Division
Police City Traffic -
g6 | 10.07.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Colombo
Police City Traffic
Raising awareness
15.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police | among Police Officers
87 R Officers in the Chilaw Police
Division
17.07.2023 Raising awareness among school children Sarvodaya Center,
83 o (Trincomalee district) Trincomalee
21.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Training Center,
89 R Officers Ratnapura
26.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
90 R Officers

College, Elpitiya

24 |page




ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT - CIABOC 2023

'§ <Z5 Date Programme/Activity Venue
75
97.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
9 o Officers Training College,
28.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
92 o Officers College, Pahalagama
) : Western Province
o3 | 28.07.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police (South) Motor Traffic
Officers .
Division
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
g4 | 02.08.2023 pros College,
Officers }
Mahiyanganaya
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
o5 | 03082023 Officers College, Kalladi
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
g5 | 03082023 Officers College, Aralaganwila
. . Police Station,
o6 | 05.08.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Cinnamon Gardens
Officers
. University of Sri
o7 | 07.08.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Jayawardenepura
undergraduates
17.08.2023 | Prevention programme conducted for Police Office of the Senior
98 oo Officers Superintendent of
Police — Galle
18.08.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Registrar General’s
9 R Documentation Assistants Department
~ y ducted for Poli Crimes Division —
revention programme conducted for Police Western Province
100 | 18.08.2023 Officers (North)
Prevention programme conducted for Police
101 | 22.08.2023 Officers
Prevention programme conducted for Police
102 | 23.08.2023 Officers
23.08.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the
103 e

Ceylon Electricity Board
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
Raising awareness among the officers
23'022023 serving in Divisional Secretariats of the
104 Ratnapura District
24.08.2023
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
105 | 24.08:2023 Officers College, Kalladi
94.08.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
106 R Officers College, Aralaganwila
Prevention programme conducted for Office of the Chief
107 | 24.08.2023 .
officers of Secretariats Secretary
28.08.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
108 R Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
109 | 28.08.2023 Officers College, Elpitiya
28.08.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
110 T Officers Training College,
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
111 | 28.08.2023 | Officers College, Pahalagama
Prevention programme conducted for University of Sri
112 | 31.08.2023 undergraduates Jayawardenepura
Prevention programme conducted for Police
113 | 02.09.2023 | Officers of the Police In-Service Training Main Hall
Unit (Thimbirigaskatuwa)
Prevention programme conducted for Police
114 | 02.09.2023 | Officers of the Police In-Service Training Main Hall
Unit (Mirihana)
Prevention programme conducted for Police
115 | 02.09.2023 | Officers of the Police In-Service Training Main Hall
Unit (Badulla)
Leadership Development Programme for .
116 | 03.09.2023 School Prefects (Royal College, Horana) School premises
117 | 05.09.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Sri Lanka Institute of

government officers

Development
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
Administration
Prevention programme conducted for University of Sri
118 | 06.09.2023 undergraduates Jayawardenepura
Prevention programme conducted for Police Special Investigations
119 | 11.09.2023 prog Unit (Sri Lanka Corps
Officers e .
of Military Police)
19.09.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
120 U Officers Training College,
20.09.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
121 o Officers College, Pahalagama
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
122 | 2°:09.2023 Officers College, Elpitiya
. . Police Training
Prevention programme conducted for Police
123 | 25.09.2023 College,
Officers .
Mahiyanganaya
25 09 2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
124 T Officers College, Boralanda
Prevention programme conducted for Police
125 | 26.09.2023 Officers (Kalladi) Z00OM
Prevention programme conducted for Police Z00M
126 | 26.09.2023 | Officers (Aralaganwila)
Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
127 | 27.09.2023 | Officers College, Kalutara
Prevention programme conducted for Department of
128 | 06.10.2023 | officers of the Department of Government P
Government Analysts
Analysts
Prevention programme conducted for . ,
129 | 07.10.2023 | officers of the Registrar General’s Registrar General’s
Department
Department
130 | 09.10.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Pasdunrata National

officers of the Pasdunrata National College

College of Education -
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wnZ
of Education Kalutara
Leadership Traini
Leadership Training Center — Meepe CZ?I t:rrs_ ﬁeera;mng
131 | 17102023 | Awareness Raising programme for the P
officers
Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
132 | 18.10.2023 Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
.. Sri Lanka Institute of
18.10.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers of Development
133 o the Department of Public Trustee slopme
Administration
Awareness raising programme for officers of Pradeshiya Sabha,
134 | 18.10.2023 .
the Pathahewaheta Pradeshiya Sabha Pathahewaheta
19.10.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police | Nikaweratiya Police
135 e Officers Training College,
90.10.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
136 e Officers College, Pahalagama
Prevention programme conducted for Sri Lanka Institute of
137 | 24.10.2023 prog Development
government officers .. :
Administration
31.10.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Chief Secretaries office
138 o government officers (Western Province)
Prevention programme conducted for Divisional Secretariat,
139 | 31.10.2023
government officers Gampaha
Preventlc?n programme condgcted for the Sariputta National
31.10.2023 academic staff, non-academic staff and Collese of Education
140 o students of the Nittambuwa Sariputta I\%ittambuwa
National College of Education
Prevention programme conducted for Divisional Secretariat,
141 | 01.11.2023
government officers Gampaha
Prevention programme conducted for
lecturers of the Kahawattha Ruwanpura Kahawattha Ruwanpura
142 | 01.11.2023 | National College of Education National College of
Education
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'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wn Z
Prevention programme conducted for
143 | 03.11.2023 teachers and prefects of the Dampelella \[/)izmiieilal\l/}g ?ilrz
Maha Vidyalaya, Matara yalaya,
06.11.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Divisional Secretariat,
144 o government officers Gampaha
06.11.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
145 o Officers College, Elpitiya
07.11.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
146 e Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Piliyandala
Prevention programme conducted for the ) )
} i Sariputta National
academic staff, non-academic staff and Collese of Education
147 | 09.11.2023 students of the Nittambuwa Sariputta Dimba deniva ’
National College of Education Y
Prevention programme conducted for the ) .
} i Sariputta National
academic staff, non-academic staff and Collese of Education
148 | 14.11.2023 | stydents of the Peradeniya National College & ) ’
. Peradeniya
of Education
Prevention programme conducted for the . .
) . Sariputta National
academic staff, non-academic staff and .
149 | 14.11.2023 . } College of Education,
students of the Peradeniya National College .
. Peradeniya
of Education
15.11.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Nikaweratiya Police
150 o Officers Training College,
16.11.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Police Training
151 o Officers College, Pahalagama
16.11.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the Ceylon Electricity
152 o Ceylon Electricity Board Board, Dehiwala
Prevent%on programme con@ucted for the National College of
academic staff, non-academic staff and .
153 | 17.11.2023 .. . Education,
students of the Pulathisipura National Pulathisioura
College of Education p
Raising awareness of the officers of the Sri A Head
154 | 17.11.2023 | Lanka Army rmy Headquarters
155 | 20.11.2023 | Prevention programme conducted for Divisional Secretariat,

29 |page




ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT - CIABOC 2023

'§ S Date Programme/Activity Venue
wn Z
government officers Gampaha
Prevent}on programme condpcted for the National College of
91.11.2023 academic staff, non-academic staff and Education
156 o students of the Addalachchenai National Ad dalachche’nai
College of Education
Prevention programme conducted for Sri Lanka Institute of
Administration
93.11.2023 Prevention programme conducted for Police Pohézl"ll;ra;mng
158 o Officers (OTCES,
Mahiyanganaya
Raising awareness among the officers of the Police City Traffic -
159 | 17.11.2023 | police City Traffic Colombo
98.11.2023 Raising awareness among the officers of the | Criminal Investigation
160 o Criminal Investigation Division Department
. . Zonal Education Office
161 | 28.11.2023 | Raising awareness among School Principals - Chilaw
Prevention programme conducted for the
30.11.2023 academic staff, non-academic staff and Mahaweli National
162 o students of the Mahaweli National College College of Education
of Education
Prevention programme conducted for the )
) : National College of
04.12.2023 academic staff, non-academic staff and Education. Galle
163 students of the Ruhunu National College of ’
Education
Raisi School Princinal Zonal Education Office
164 | 05.12.2023 aising awareness among School Principals - - Elpitiya
12122023 Awareness raising programme for officers of Ceylon Petroleum
165 o the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation Corporation
Awareness raising programme for officers of Ceylon Petroleum
166 | 13.12.2023 | the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation Corporation
14 & Prevention programme conducted for the Wayamba National
167 | 15.12.2023 | academic staff, non-academic staff and College of Education

students of the Wayamba National College
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;% <Z5 Date Programme/Activity Venue
of Education
Awareness raising programme for officers of | Kelaniya Pradeshiya
168 | 14.12.2023 | the Kelaniya Pradeshiya Sabha Sabha
14.12.2023 Awareness raising programme for officers Delgoda Pradeshiya
169 o of the Delgoda Pradeshiya Sabha Sabha
19122023 Prevention programme conducted for Divisional Secretariat,
170 o government officers Thamankaduwa

Prevention programme conducted for the

academic staff, non-academic staff and Siyane National
171 | 20.12.2023 | stydents of the Siyane National College of College of Education
Education

2.1.10 Programmes conducted under the JURE Project (UNDP funded)

Programme No. of Expenditure
Programmes (Rs.)

1 | Training Program For Intergrity Officers 06 4,082,433.43

2 | Three days residential training programme to training 06 15,143,568.95
of trainers (TOT) in government Institutions

3 | Anti-Corruption And Integrity to be introduces/reviced 01 618,913.40
as a module in training programs for public Officers

4 | Awareness raising/ training programs & on-the job 18 7,180,720.14
training opportunities for community Police Officers

5 | Awareness program on intergrity, anti corruption & 15 12,377,018.14
values for education sector

6 | Awareness raising/training programms & on the job 01 426,599.25
training for members of statutory board

7 | Anti Corruption Day - 2023 Programme 01 3,261,256.00

8 | Experience sharing sessions & dialougs to exchange 01 409,450.94

best practisces between Objectives

9 | Conduct quaterly sessions for sharing experience & 05 592,028.79
best practices with civil society

Total 54 44,091,989.04
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2.2. Challenges

Poor support by the general public in lodging complaints against corrupt
public officials and in giving evidence when required.

Reluctance of parties such as businessmen and investors to report large-scale
bribery and corruption practices of politicians.

Lack of interest in public officers to implement an anti-corruption programme
in the public sector

Absence of Investigation Officers with expertise in different fields.

Difficulty of finding documentary evidence although such evidence is

necessary for proving corruption cases.

Unavailability of sufficient office space for the staff of the Bribery
Commission

Inability to trace acts of fraud and corruption through available documents
due to the procedure presently practised in the government procurement.

Difficulty in obtaining the contribution of witnesses and complainants in
distant areas due to the high cost of travelling.

2.3. Future Goals

Expedite renovation work of the Commission in order to discharge the
functions assigned to it by the Anti-Corruption Act No. 09 of 2023.

Obtain the Declaration of Assets and Liabilities of public officials and
politicians online and store the information in a Centralized Electronic System
installed at the Commission.

Implement the National Action Plan for Combating Bribery and Corruption in
Sri Lanka to minimize bribery and corruption.

Improve facilities necessary for the Commission tolnvestigate Allegations of
Bribery and Corruption.

Introduce topics such as bribery and corruption law to school and university
curricula to develop the attitudes of students and undergraduates.

Establish a computerized database to manage the files of the Commission.
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03. Overall Financial Performance of the
Year

3.1. Statement of Financial Performance of the year

3.2. Statement of Financial Position

3.3. Statement of Cash Flows

3.4. Notes to the Financial Statements (i) - (viii)

Chapter Three 3.5. Performance of Revenue Collection

3.6. Performance of the Utilization of Allocations

3.7. In terms of F.R.208, grant of allocations for
expenditure to this Department/District
Secretariat/Provincial Council as an agent of the

other Ministries/Departments

3.8. Performance of the Reporting of Non-Financial
Assets

3.9. Auditor General's Report
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3.1. Statement of Financial Performance of the year
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Statement of Financial Performance
for the period ended 31st December 2023

Taxes on Domestic Goods & Services
Taxes on International Trade

Non Tax Revenue & Others

Total Revenue Receipts (A)

Non Revenue Receipts

Other Main Ledger Receipts

Total Non Revenue Receipts (B)

Total Revenue Receipts & Non Revenue
Receipts C = (A)HB)

Remi to the Treasury (D)

Net Revenue Receipts & Non Revenue
Receipts E = (C)-(D)

Recurrent Expenditure
Wages, Salaries & Other Employment

Other Goods & Services
Subsidies, Grants and Transfers

Revised Budget
Allocations 2023
Rs.
- Revenue Receipts
- Income Tax
- Treasury Imprests
- Deposits
- Advance Accounts
Less: Expenditure
558,940,000 Benefits
220,640,000
6,700,000
- Interest Payments
20,000

786.300,000

21,000,000
2.000,000

800,000
66,783,720
90,583,720

876,883,720.00

Other Recurrent Expenditure
Total Recurrent Expenditure (F)

Capital Expenditure

Rehabilitation & Improvement of Capital
Assets

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Capital Transfers

Acquisition of Financial Assets
Capacity Building

Other Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure (G)

Deposit Payments

Advance Payments

Other Main Ledger Payments

Total Main Ledger Expenditure (H)

Total Expenditure I = (F+G+H)

Balance as at 31st December J = (E-I)

Balance as per the Imprest Adjustment
Statement
Imprest Balance as at 31st December

Note

B N

n

Lol R

ACA -F
Actual
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.

- - ACA-1
412,472,720 326,325,000 ACA-3
62,817,204 552,806 ACA-4
42,800,286 22,249,576 ACA-5
518,090,210 349,127,382
518,090,210 349,127,382
11,573,706 31,116
506,516,503 349,096,266
449,152,940 442,793,636

ACA-
125,976,718 93,878,255 [2(ii)
825,006 733,282
5.955 22,147
575,960,620 537.427.319
14,268,334 10,016,832
1,380,119 1,028,871
ACA-
4 - G
643,093 792,885
51,765,091 853,297
68,056,636 12,691,885
62,742,379 542,282 ACA-4
39,774,925 21,978,034 ACA-5S
102,517,304 22,520,315
746,534,559 572,639,519
(240,018,056) (223,543,254)

(240,018,056)

(223,543,254) ACA-7
- ACA-3

(240,018,056)

(223,543,254)
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3.2. Statement of Financial Position

ACA-P
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st December 2023
Actual
Note 2023 2022
Rs Rs
Non Financial Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment ACA-6 2,174,067,906 1,562,625,151
Financial Assets
Advance Accounts ACA-5/5(a) 67,576,833 70,602,194
Cash & Cash Equivalents ACA-3 - -
Total Assets 2,241,644,739 1,633,227,345
Net Assets / Equity
Net Worth to Treasury 67,470,447 70,570,633
Property, Plant & Equipment Reserve 2,174,067,906 1,562,625,151
Rent and Work Advance Reserve ACA-5(b)
Current Liabilities
Deposits Accounts ACA-4 106,386 31,561
Unsettled Imprest Balance ACA-3 - -
Total Liabilities 2,241,644,739 1,633,227,345

Detail Accounting Statements in ACA format Nos. 1 to 7 presented in pages from 6 to 25 and Annexures to
accounts presented in pages from 26 to32 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The Financial
Statements have been prepared in complying with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles whereas most
appropriate Accounting Policies are used as disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements and hereby certify
that figures in these Finacial Statements, Notes to accounts and other relevant accounts were reconciled with the
Treasury Books of Accounts and found in agreement.

We hereby certify that an effective internal control system for the financial control exists in the Reporting Entity and
carried out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of internal control system for the financial control and
accordingly make alterations as required for such systems to be effectively carried out.

Chief Accounting Officer Chief Accountant
Name :W.K.D.Wijerathna Name : W.M.D.Bandara
Designation :Director General

35



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

3.3. Statement of Cash Flows

ACA-P
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st December 2023
Actual
Note 2023 2022
Rs Rs
Non Financial Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment ACA-6 2.174,067.906 1,562,625,151
Financial Assets
Advance Accounts ACA-5/5(a) 67,576,833 70,602,194
Cash & Cash Equivalents ACA-3 - -
Total Assets 2,241,644,739 1,633,227,345
Net Assets / Equity
Net Worth to Treasury 67,470,447 70,570,633
Property, Plant & Equipment Reserve 2,174,067,906 1,562,625,151
Rent and Work Advance Reserve ACA-5(b)
Current Liabilities
Deposits Accounts ACA-4 106,386 31,561
Unsettled Imprest Balance ACA-3 - -
Total Liabilities 2,241,644,739 1,633,227,345

Detail Accounting Statements in ACA format Nos. 1 to 7 presented in pages from 6 to 25 and Annexures to
accounts presented in pages from 26 to32 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The Financial
Statements have been prepared in complying with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles whereas most
appropriate Accounting Policies are used as disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements and hereby certify
that figures in these Finacial Statements, Notes to accounts and other relevant accounts were reconciled with the
Treasury Books of Accounts and found in agreement.

We hereby certify that an effective internal control system for the financial control exists in the Reporting Entity and
carried out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of internal control system for the financial control and
accordingly make alterations as required for such systems to be effectively carried out.

Chief Accounting Officer Chief Accountant
Name :W.K.D.Wijerathna Name : W.M.D.Bandara
Designation :Director General
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| Statements (i) - (ix)

inancia

3.4. Notes to the F

9T

eIepuRe ([N A\ © QWEN
JURIUNOOOY JoIY))

‘snedax SutoSropun Ajjuarmo st pue pagewep usaq sey 70771 T1 L6S9-Hd/d M

“papn[oul 3q PINOYSs SILAA
Surwos ur pajunoooe aq 0) pajdadxa SIGAIEM pUE SISSO] [ons pue [()/] OU 9pod 102[qo 1opun pajuNoose ¢ [ Y . JOpun SaAIEM pue g()[ Y ] Jopun sassof uo S[rejd(] -9JoN

YL EVE 9y #1901, 00°0
05°S08°v€ TCS661 T
PTRESTIY 970L-0VO 1 -
§3se) JOON $38S07] JO 2INJEN A( SISED I JO UOHEIJISSE] )
- junowry|  saeak o 19AQ
- S3587) JO'ON| YL EVE Iy T
- junoury’ YL EVE IV ( 10000°ST  'SY AQ
- Sase)) Jo'oON s1eak ([-§ = Z 00000°ST  Sd MO[eH
bL'SPE ObY junoury/’ SIBAA anep
T Sase) JO'ON|  OALJ UBY) SSIT
()
70966961 18107, 00°0S80TT el
00°008°61 ol 0861-d/dM 9
T09%0°1€ L8IZ-INA/AM § 00°005°91 ke PIST-OMN/dM S
00°000°8€ 0L69-OVD ¥ 0000061 o 68SL-S/dM ¥
00°000°0€ L8LSVd € 00°00€°TT L £905-4N ¢
00°0S1°T€E S8E610¢ T 00°000°0T el 9S€1-Dd T
00°008°S9 £90S5-€4N 1 00°0ST°€T Ld £PEI-Dd 1
Ts4) ____ onjep  S3se) JOoN “$35S07] JO 9ANJEU A(] SISED ) JO UONEIJISSE[)
T09V8°LIE 11 [el0L
70°966°961 S 100006T  'SY P_AQ
00°0S8°0T1 9 00000°ST "SI Mmopg

5358 JO'ON anfeA

SY)  junouwry [ejo],

“IE3A 3Y) SULIND JJO PIATEAN/JJO UIILIAY /PIIIA0IIY SISSOT JO JUdUIA)E)S (1
1 apLL % "oN dwweadoug
uondn.ii0)) 10 A1dqLIG SUONESI[Y JLS)SIAU] 0) UOISSIUWO)) 010: ON peaH damyipuadxy
(€11 "'d Pue 901 "Y'q J3pun sassoy)
SJIJATB AN PUE SISSOTT JO judmidlel§

(1)-2anxsuuy

37



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

38

LT

erepued (I’ A\ © QWEN
JUBJUNODY JOIYD)

*JRULIO] S} UT Papn[oul aq PInoys ¢([ Y ] JOpun SIAIEM pue sasso] Jajo Aue AJuo (1)2InXauuy ul pajunodde aq 0} SIAIEM Pue sasso] SuIpnjoxs - AON

= 00°5S6S - 00°6S6S 0076565 [LaLA N
£20T/0T/S@ = 00008 = 00°008 007008 L
£20T/0T/5@ - 00°00¢ - 00°00€ 00°00¢ 9
£20T/0T/S@ R 000081 R 0070081 0070081 S
£20T/0T/S@ _ 00°00§ _ 007008 007008 14
5 - - z s1eaA ()7 URY) dI0W -
£20T/0T/59 00°00T 00002 00°00T ¢
- - 10] Apojsno 1mos Y31y ur proy Asuowr oqug
£20T/0T/S@ 00°SLIT 00°SLIT 00°SLIT s10(10 pue j0adsns oty doayy 4
R R 0] 1500 2] Y[IW ‘S3[110( )M JUAI WOOY
1IN0 Y31 oquiojo))
£207/07/50 = 00°08L 5 00°08L 00°08L o4)4q patausspieg ol yeramoq donbry| |
e~ e~ e~ ~q e~
j0oq dY) wo.ay JJO udpLIM Jou yooq T
330 yram a0y [eaoaddy | seam yoryam paesmdoy [ Yy wo.y jjo JJO UIJJLIM JOU SBAL
JO "o dudIJY parLLIed RduUE[Rg UIYLIM IN[EA SILIIA0IIY SSO[ JO anje A yorym ueeq sumwadQ
€A oY) surInp 6O " J 19PUN SILIIA0IJI PUE J00( ) WOTJ JJO IJLIA JO JUIUWIIJE)S z
0076S6°S L #0L
- s 10°000°$T "SY 120 (m
00°5S6°S L 00°000°ST "SY MopPg o
(SN T sseyjooN angep
TCIX oY) SuULINp GOT "y . 19PUN SIJATEAL PUE SISSO] JO JUIUIAILIS I
ORI 7 "ON dwmeagoag
uondn.rio) 1o L19qLig suonyeSd[y 2)e3)SIAUL 0) UOISSIUWOD) 010: ON pedH 2amyipuadxy

$300( W01 JJO IJLIAA JO JudUIdIe}S
(1)-danxsuuy



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

(1) danxduuy

8T

Woday [IN

JIQUIdII( ISTE JE St SANI[IGRI] PUB SHUIWIUWIWIO) JO JUIWI) LIS

39



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

6C
SEI8T'8EY [eI0L
00°00€T6T 11 LOVT 0 I IAIAG AILINSG udunredo( AILMd0g [IA1)
19°T1L°08 I 60v1 0 I eliife) Auedwo)(uon) Surper], aierg
YL '69T°S9 I €01 0 I Anomoorg preog A10109[F U0L)
spieog Areyme)g/suoneiodio) aevig g
¥8'8L6L09 [eIoL
00°00§°T 11| (0P D60FT 0 I Rsliile} BULIRIBWAI] BYSIEH
00°008 11| (0vD60YT 0 I eliiTe) eueypIRARIND Y
0S'T0T°T 11| (0¥ D60T1 0 I Reliile} ferempg's's
00°000°C 11| (0P D60FI 0 I Reliile} eyquiseuey 'V’ IN
00°000°1 11| (v D60TT 0 I RSliile} HIsueMnN eYe[eN
00°000°T 11| (0¥ D60TT 0 I Reliile} LsuemnyN exe[eN
00°0SL9% I €001 0 I SOUEMO][Y SI9YIQ % eeAeUIIUE 'S H'IN' M
SL'LSS'TE I 2001 0 I WNIdAQ SIOYIQ) % dFe[eMeAIPI(] BNPEA
79°079°SS 11 2001 0 I WmIdAQ SI9YIQ % eySUISEWEDIM NV M
0T'LLS 6T 11 2001 0 I AWNIdAQ SIYIQO 2 MISBR[IY ], epuety
9S"LETPTT I 2001 0 I awnIdAQ sPYIO X 1S eueyq )'d'V'H
€€°€T6'9C I 2001 0 I wnIeAQ S1YIQ % erexoseke[ ) N'd' A
85095 ST 11 2001 0 I wmnIdAQ SIDYIQ 2 BULIYIEd UeAny
0€'6bY 1€ 11 2001 0 I WIIdAQ SYIQ % UeySNY ' AN
EuEt.mQuQ JUSWILIDAOL) /SALISTUTIA [
Csd)
(sy) SUOISIAO.IJ
) unouwr
Abﬂwﬁ_asi %< MMVM-M.MM— bk MMVM”:S 9p0) P0) 130loag qng | 199loag ARVEITINIGL) uonNINSUT/u0SIdg Y} Jo JwWeN
S dupueury | 109[q0 : ’ Jo uondrsaq A
UMW) | uf Pewnsy| uj surr)
380D [RIO], | JUdUNIWWO))
WNWIXBA

(A1) danxduuy

1 IPIL % "ON dwweadorg
0T10: "ON PeIH damypudadxy

uondn.rio)) 10 £1QLIg SUONESIY NeSNSIAUT 0) UOISSTWIO))

(€) pue (7) v6 WA JO SWLII) U SHUIUNIWWO) JO JUIUA)E)S
(I) - SaNI[IqerT] JO JuduId)e)s

40



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

erepueg QA M © QWEN

JUBIUNOdDY JOIY))

0€

PTS8T08S‘T

S0'STOPES

0070€ 8P 1
LS'LT6T6
0T €IS 0r
8TOLY' 11
00 FET°ST
00'9L9°STT

It
Il
I
I
Il
I

60¥1
Sovl
0pT
0p1
(60002021
(600)z021

=

sy
S0
UOT)EIIUNUILIO))
UOT)EIIUNUILIO))
[ong

Png

@0

[el0] puein

s1odedsmapN eAelip

s1oysijqin owardng
pueqpeoig 3o[eiq

elerxy Sofeiq

uonelg urfig oduisnddy DdN
SUOS % [PIN °d 4D

(sanaed dreAllq) SRYQ ‘€

41



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

9
¥T0T Areniqa e
eIepueg (N A : QWEN
JUBIUNODOY JAIYD) Anua Suniodal 2y 0} JUBAJ[AI UAYM AJUO aSN P[NOYS 4
[)0], puetn)
JeoL,
o e e [ (N I ————
« |t 1  tr vt 1 1] e——
(sonIed AeALL) SIYIO "¢
B0,
= 1 (1 v 1 0] ee———
< |t 1t 't 't 1°r 1| ——
spieog] Areime)g/suonerodio) aelg 7
[B10L
i e e e e [ N I ——————
e < e [ [ [ e ————————
Juounedo(] JUSWIUIAOL)/SILISTUTA] * |
apo) apo) 1oaforg qng| jooforg » ("S)UN0Y
(*sy) padaagsuea], |-oN junodoy [ Supueurg walqo yisodd( 03 UOISIA0IJ Y} SULIdJSURI],
junowry nsodaq PRI9JSURLY, XM “ON O/1 Anpqery jo uondusaq Jo owy dyj Je paynuapl oq
SUOISIAOAJ YITYM WOIJ S[TRIIP )0 A JO Je[ndN)Ieg U T 0]) UONIYSUJ/UOSIIJ YY) JO JWBN
1 IPIL 2% "ON dwweIZoIg
1 apo) damyipuadxy
JUIAS[IY 10N 1 JRLIR)IIIG JOLSI(] / Judunpreda(q / AnSIUTA Jo dwe N

(3) 2 (q) (€) STZ ¥ JO SuLId) Ul JUN0IIY 31s0d3(] Y3 0) PI.LIFJSUBL ], UOISIAOLJ
(1) - SADI[IQEI] JO JUSUIRIEIS

(A)-danxouuy

42




Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

LS

$T0T Areniqag Lo Anua Funiodal oy 0] JUBA[AI USYM AJUO SN P[NOYS
eIRpURE ([N : dWeN
JUBUNOIY JAIYD

.......................... @r-1r+on
SHUAWIYR)S [eIdURUL] Y3 Sunuasaad Jo ajup dy) Je sk FUIPUR)ISINO SWIR]) JUIWISINQUINY Jo [vjo],  (€1)

SHUDWIY RS [RIDURULY 9} J0 uopezieuy oY) 03 AN £Z07/TT/IE 93 PIAPIIL JUIWISINGUINY JO [BJ0L,  (Z1)

SHUDWINRS [RIURULIY) JO uopezITeuy Y3 03 dn 170 J0 393dsa UY €70T/TT/LE 19)3E IPRU SWIR])) JUIWISINUIIY JO [BJOL  (11)

0 (6+8) - [+ - (49 |
€707 1IqUII( IST£ ¥ Sk SUIPUR)SINO SWITR])) JUdUISINQUIRI Jo [vJo],  (0])

€707 ST.IA J0 123dSax Ul ‘g707 1vIA ) SULINP PIAIIIII SJUIWASINQUIIY Jo [e0o],  (6)

saeak Jorid 10 7707 s1vak Jo 30adsar ui ‘77 IrIA YY) SULIND PIAIIAL SYUIWISINGUIINY JO [¥)0], 8

€207 swre)) jo yradsox uy ‘(Aue J1) €707 Surmp “rouo(q 3y £q pasoypesip sue)) jo jpjoy, (L)

ue J1) saeak aorxd a0 g7z swrep) Jo 32adsax uy ‘(Aue J1) £707 Surmp “ouo(q ay) Aq pamojpesip swie[) jo jejoy,  (9)

44444444444444444444444444 €207 1834 J0 12adsaa ug ‘g7z 1A 91) SULIND IpRW SWIE]) JUIWISINQUIY Jo [¥o],  (S)

{ue 1) saeak dorrd 2p 770z s1waL Jo 193dsaa ur ‘g7 1A Y} SuULINp dpeul SUIe]) JUIWASINQUIY Jo 2o, ()

€707 A1enueg JS[() Je St SUIPUR)ISINO SWIRI]) JUIUWISINGUINY Jo [ejo],  (f)

a0qe (1) ysurese ‘gz(7 1ed4 ay) Surinp pasangsip d.anypuadxyy [vjo], (4]

suoisiaoad Livjuduniddng Surpnpul pry uS0I0,] [qUSINQUITIY JIPUN §7(T - SHPRUNST] UI UOISIAOIJ 0

1 IPLY, % "ON duuneaSo.g

$ JRLIRIDINAS JILSI( / Judumpreda(y / Anysturpy

PV Emmo.uc,m I[qesanquiiy JIpun suwie|’) jo judunlel§
(1a)-danxduuy

43



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

1€

eIepuRg N M : SWEN
JUEBUNODOY JAIYD)

paprqns aq pynoys 1odax [1u & ‘podai Sy} 0) PIESAI YIIM UOIBULIOJUI OU dIE AIBY} USYAY 4

(*sy) yJunowry

Judwke g Jo danjeN e Jo aweN 0N JIYINOA AReq

(mA)-dunxduuy

$JPLL % *ON dwmeIdorg
010: ON PBIH danjyrpuddxy
uondn.rio)) 10 A13qLIg SUONESI[Y )BSNSIAU 0) UOISSIUIUO))

SI9YINOA SUISSIJA] JO JUIUIDIEIS

44



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

erepueg] ([N’ A\ © QWeN
JUBUNOIIY JAIYD)

[43

*J99.110) pUE NI} ST UOHBULIOFUT JA0QR Y} Je) AJ1)190 AqaIdy |

youerg
1oquIaoa(J €T0T g = I8 LLI'T69°SE LSO0YOL uojduriio yueq uolkaD| |
(sy) sy
(sypuour 9 SpaddXa J1) €20T/TI/I€ €T0TU/TL/IE
paaedaag uonerpu0Y : ; €T0T/TI/1€ e se Yyoogq ; ‘ON
A TR je se yueg 0) pIuUISAI e JE SB JUIWI)I ) 0N JUN0IIY yuegq Jo awieN e

394 jou sanbay) jo anjep [eo],

yueg Jad se duefeqg

(1mA)-danxauuy

uonpdnaio)) 10 L1quIg suoneId[Y 9JL31SIAUL 0) UOISSIUIWIO)

STOZ/01/£C JO ST0T/E "ON €[OI UONTIA() ATNSEI L JO SULIO) Ul

Pauado SJUN0IJY Uty U0 £70Z/CI/IE I¢ SE J10day SMIe)S o],

010: "ON pedy damyipuadxy




Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

3.5. Performance of Revenue Collection

(q+v) Xe [, surodu] [ujo];

(q) xe, erodio))-uoN [ejo],
INSO[ISI(] AIRJUN[OA UO Xe ],
xe], uren) pepde)
suodury
U:muﬂ_co
9B.IRY) IIIAIIG NWOUOI |
IO 2 S99, U
1S2I9)UT U()
Xe ], SuployypIa
PPO
AAVd

(e) xe ], yerodio) [ejo,
XE ] 20UB)IUY

Xe], puspIal(

Xg], awoouy

XVI IINODNI,

00°T0°¥001
00°90°%001
00°S0°001
20707001
1070 ¥001
0070001
66°€0700T
10°€0 00T
00°€0°v001
66°T0°001
10°20°%001

00° 10001
£0°10 V00T
20107001
10° 107001

(mp
-(e+(m)z=¢

(p+
Op=(mp

(mp

Oy

()

(Wz+

(mz

Mz

1

o1

€70T
POLIdJ Y} 10 ]
ANUIANY 1IN

eoL

SUONIILIO))
Jo.arg

ysue) Ag

ANUIANY
SIRILLY JO
uondaf0)

[L2LA )

az-vs)
-syda(y
/SOLUISTUTIA!
PO £q
PaIR[I0)

adaq
/Ansty
Aq
Pajdrfo)

sy
pasIAy

djewinsyy
[euidLiQ

©)

()

(€)

@

({9

ANUIAIY WO.IJ pUNyY

UOIII[0)) INUIANY

JuWNST] INUIANY

ajoN

SPILL INUIAY

apo)
ANUIANY

sd

1WA JON

: o\ pedf] danjipuadxyy

€207 12quaA( ISTE PIpud porsad ayy

J10J INUIAIY JO JUIUIAN LIS

: 192GJO SUPUNOIIY INUIARY

46



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

3.6. Performance of the Utilization of Allocations
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3.7. In terms of F.R.208 grant of allocations for expenditure to this

Department/ District Secretariat/ Provincial Council as an agent of
the other Ministries/ Departments

Consecutive
No.

Allocation Granted
Ministry/Department

Provision

Initial
Allocation

Final
Allocation

Actual
Expenditure

Utilized
provision as a
% of
finalized
amount of
final
provision
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3.8. Performance of the Reporting of Non-Financial Assets

1/31/24, 9:15 AM newcigas.treasury.gov.lk/T_Statements_23/T_23_Asset_BoS
Cumalative No Flnanclal Asset Accoun ts Report- Central Govi-2023
Land-9153: 1,677,050,000.00 Table: ~ SA 82
Building- 9151:  187,012,552.58 Year: 2023
Machinary-9152: 310,005,353.80 Rpt Date 1/31/2024 9:15:37 AM
WIP-9160: 0.00 Head 010
Intangible-9154: 0.00
Lease-9180: 0.00
Ledger category Item " Code Opn_Bal Opn_Bal_Add Transferin Purchase  Disposal Balance
9151-- 1.2-Non
4 Residential 61112 177,862,552.58  9.150,000.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 187,012,552.58
‘ Building
Office Building ****6111201 177,862,552.58 9,150,000.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 187,012,552.58
Q@ ) als
3 Transport 61121 192,821,699.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 192,821,699.00
Equipment
5:?:{;5” #*+%6112101 189,270,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 189,270,200.00
Motorcycle  ****6112109 3,551,499.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,551,499.00
2.2-Other '
ol 61122 116,190,899.84  0.00 0.00 1,380,118.50 387,363.54 117,183,654.80
Equipment
‘E)ﬁ‘.“ **x%6112201 3,537,453.76  0.00 0.00 10,590.00  46,798.27 3,501,245.49
quipment
Compater 426112202 56,810,311.20  0.00 0.00 473,600.00 216,314.87 57,067,596.33
Equipment
g‘“.‘"“‘ *xx26112203 18,996,075.43  0.00 0.00 115.890.50 9,985.00  19,101,980.93
quipment
Communication 4uug 12204 6,903,362.66  0.00 0.00 378,038.00  35,500.00 7,245,900.66
Equipment
. Furniture =x¥%6112205 29,026,209.38  0.00 0.00 402,000.00 78,765.40 29,349,443.98
Medical wxex6112207 74,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 74,800.00
Equipment
Construction  4uuxg12213 §24,287.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 824,287.41
Eqipment
Delence *+*26112215 18,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,400.00
Equipment
9153 41-Land 61410 1,075,750,000.00 601,300,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,677,050,000.0
Land «+++614100 1.075,750,000.00 601.300,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.677,050,000.0¢
|REMARKS ‘ i
This is a computer-generated document. No signature is required. i
s i
{Report Generated by the new CIGAS Web Application—-Developed by S.Tharshan - |
{Director, Dept of State Accounts |

&

nttps://newcigas.treasury.gov.Ik/T_Statements_23/T_23_Asset_BoS 7n
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3.9. Auditor General's Report

English Translation

English Translation of the letter number PIC/B/CIABC/2/23/23 dated May 21, 2024 of the National Audit
Office addressed to the Director General of the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or

Corruption

Director General
Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption

Head - 010 Summary Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the
Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption for the year ended 31 December
2023 in terms of Section 11(1) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018

1.2

The audit of the financial statements of the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery
or Corruption - Head - 010 for the year ended 31 December 2023 comprising the statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of financial performance and the
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including
material accounting policy information was carried out under my direction in pursuance of
provisions of Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka read in conjunction with provisions of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. My
comments and observations on these financial statements, being presented to the Commission
to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption in terms of section 11(1) of the National
Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 appeared in this report. The Annual Detailed Management Audit
Report will be presented to the Chief Accounting Officer in due course pursuant to Section
11(2) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. The Report of the Auditor General to be
presented in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(6) of the Constitution of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 10 of the National Audit
Act, No. 19 of 2018 will be presented to Parliament in due course.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters given in Paragraph 1.6 of this report, the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Commission to
Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption as at 31 December 2023 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

I qualified my opinion based on the matters given in Paragraph 1.6 of this report. I conducted
my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuS). My responsibilities on
the financial statements are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities section. |
believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.
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It is the responsibility of the Chief Accounting Officer for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and provisions in terms of Section 38 of the National Audit Act, No.19
of 2018 and for determination of such internal control that is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error. In terms of Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, the
Commission shall require to maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities to enable preparation of annual and periodic financial statements.

As per the requirement of Sub -section 38(1) (c) of the National Audit Act, the Chief
Accounting Officer shall ensure that an effective internal control system for the financial
control exists and carry out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of such system and
accordingly make any alterations as required for such system to be effectively carried out.

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue the
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Although reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

o evaluate whether the financial statements are appropriately and reasonably inclusive

of transactions and incidents underlying the structure and contents of the financial
statements including disclosures.
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e evaluate whether the underlying transactions and events relevant to the structure and
content of the financial statements are included appropriately and reasonably and the
overall presentation of the financial statements with disclosures.

I communicate with the Chief Accounting Officer regarding the significant audit findings,
major internal control deficiencies and other matters that have been identified during my
audit.

| state the following matters in terms of Section 6(1) (d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of
2018.

(a) The financial statements presented are consistent with the preceding year.

(b) The recommendations made by me on the financial statements of the preceding year had

been implemented.

1.6 Comments on the Financial Statements

16.1

16.2

163

Revenue Collected on behalf of Other Revenue Heads

A sum of Rs. 43,200 which had been collected by the Commission on behalf of the Other
Revenue Heads had not been stated under the Revenue collected on behalf of Other
Revenue Heads, and stated as Divestiture Proceeds and Sale of Physical Assets in the
cash flow statement. Therefore, Revenue collected on behalf of Other Revenue Heads
had been understated by the said amount and Divestiture Proceeds and Sale of Physical
Assets had been overstated by the same amount.

Even though recovery of advances of the Commission stood at Rs. 42,010,361, it had
been stated as Rs. 39,782,951 under cash flow from operating activities in the cash flow
statements and thereby understating Rs. 2,227,410.

Pursuant to the format given in the State Accounts Guideline No. 05/2023 dated 30
November 2023 in respect of preparation of the financial statements, capital expenditure
should be stated under cash disbursed for investing activities. However, in the cash flow
statement presented by the Commission, it was stated as Purchase or Construction of
Physical Assets and Acquisition of Other Investment.
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Although advance payments of the Commission was amounted to Rs. 39,170, 875, it had
been stated as Rs. 36,950,987 under the cash flows generated from operating activities in
the cash flow statement and thereby an underestimation of Rs. 2,219,888.

2. Financial Review

Due to the fact that estimates of expenditure had not been prepared in conformity with the
F.R. 50, a sum equivalent to Rs. 116,261,167 remained as savings after utilization of
provisions pertaining to 10 object codes relating to recurrent expenditure and 02 object codes
relating to capital expenditure and as such the savings after utilization of provisions ranged
between 25 percent to 100 percent.

The liabilities to a sum of Rs. 1,057,391 in respect of 03 object codes relating to the year
under review and payments were made in January and February in 2024, had not been
included in the Statement of Commitments and Liabilities in terms of FR 94 (2) and 94 (3).

Reference to laws, rules and Non-compliance
regulations

(@ Government Procurement Guideline

(i) Section 4.2.1 (c) The procurement of air conditioners to a
sum of Rs. 790,395 during the year under
review had not been included in the
Procurement Plan.

(if) Section 4.2.1 (e) The Master Procurement Plan had not been
updated during a period not exceeding 06
months.

Of the 3,431 complaints received by the Commission during the period from 01 January 2023
to 31 December 2023, 2,789 complaints had been referred to the Complaints Review
Committee. It was ordered that 766 complaints referred to the Complaints Review Committee
should not be proceeded any further as the said complaints were submitted with insufficient
facts and not complied with the Commission’s Act. Further, 613 complaints had been referred

53



Annual Performance Report 2023 - CIABOC

to other institutions for any further action since the said complaints did not fall under the
scope of the Commission’s Act. Accordingly, 49 percent of the complaints referred to the
Commission did not fall under the scope of the Commission’s Act or complaints submitted
with insufficient facts.

Following observations were made.

(@) Action had not been taken in terms of the Financial Regulations to conduct
investigations and to recover or waive off 02 balances valued at Rs. 34,805 of over
10 years and Rs. 411,538 of less than 5 years.

(b) The investigations in respect of the accidents relating to 04 vehicles of the
Commission in terms of F.R. 104(1) had been conducted after lapse of 07 months to
06 years from the occurrence of the accident.

Items under 68 categories of court produce have been stored in the Court Produce Section
which had been recommended to submit for an internal auction or disposal in terms of the
Committee Report dated 31 January 2006 on disposal of the court produce. Despite as
long as 18 years lapsed from 2006 to the date of audit i.e. 31 March 2024, action has not
been taken to implement the committee recommendations by taking necessary action.

Following observations were made.

(@) In terms of the cadre details of the Commission, there were 38 vacancies in the senior
level, 204 vacancies in the tertiary level, 189 level vacancies in the secondary level
and 60 vacancies in the primary level as at 31 December 2023.

(b) Even though the Commission had obtained approval for 200 posts of Investigation
Officers in the year 2018, 30 posts of Assistant Director (Legal) and 50 Posts of
Prevention Officers in the year 2019 from the Department of Management Services,
the fact that the vacancies existed in the way that there were 200 vacancies in the post
of Investigation Officers, 20 vacancies in the post of Assistant Director (Legal) and
36 Posts of Prevention Officers as at 31 December 2023 has not negatively impacted
on the performance of the institution could not be eliminated.

Sgd./ H.S.S.Perera
Senior Assistant Auditor General
for Auditor General
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4. Performance Indicators

CHAPTER FOUR (Based on the Action Plan)
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4. Performance Indicators (based on the Action Plan)

Actual outcome as a

percentage of the Expected

Expected Actual outcome (%)
Serial . .
Specific Indicator Outcome Outcome ° . .
No. S N N
x =N <
. =) ~
N o °
o N N
= =) =)
S g bt
Number of Complaints
01 Review Committee 48 57 v
meetings held
02 Number of investigation 3.500 3219 v
files completed
03 Number of cases 75 60 %
prosecuted
Number of awareness
04 | raising programmes 140 171 v
conducted
Total Number of
Prevention Programmes
05 rrogran 55 54 v
conducted islandwide
under foreign funding
06 No. o.f Commission 12 12 v
Meetings held
07 No. of .Audit Ma?agement o4 04 v
Committee meetings held
Recurrent expenditure
08 . 786,300,000.00 | 575,960,620.00 v
incurred
Capital dit
gy | ~APTAl SXPEnditure 90,583,720.00 | 68,056,636.00 v
incurred
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05. Performance of Achieving
Sustainable Development
Goals (SDG)

5.1. Identified Objectives of Sustainable
Development Goals

5.2. Achievements and Challenges in

Realizing Sustainable
Development Goals
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5. Performance of Achieving Sustainable Development Goals

(SDG)

5.1. Identified Objectives of Sustainable Development Goals

Takes action to “subtantially reduce corruption and bribery in all their forms”
outlined under 16.5 of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDG).

Percentage
of
Achieveme
nts
i i up to now
Goals Targets Achievement Indices p
N
NERE
2|8 | S
NI RS
=)
S 3 &
Increase community
contribution in combatting
bribery & corruption by
raising their awareness on e Conducted 171 commnity
. . v
preventing bribery & awareness raising programmes
corruption
. e Conduct 140 awareness
Substantially
rogrammes
reduce Prog
corruption and | e Capacity building of Legal
bribery in all Officers, Investigation
segments of Officers, Prevention officers
the I?ubhc and other officers. (120 e Offered training opportunities
service Pro.s
) to 106 officers. v
e Allocate Rs. 90,583,720.00 as .
capital expenditure to e Spent a capital expenditure of RS. v
. . 68,056,636.00 to improve the
improve the facilities of fcilic
CIABOC. acilities.
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Percentage
of
Achieveme
nts
Goals Targets Achievement Indices up to now
°
Il |3
= 8 CE
Amend laws on birbery and
Substantially corruption
reduce Adoption of the Anti-Corruption
corruption and | * Formulated a new Act No. 09 of 2023 and
bribery in all consolidated Act by commencement of the
segments of amending and implementation of relevant Y
the public amalgamating the Bribery provisions.
service Act, the Commission Act
and the Declaration of
Assets and Liabilities Law

5.2. Achievements and Challenges in Realizing Sustainable
Development Goals

Achievements

¢ Adoption of the Anti-Corruption Act No. 09 of 2023 and commencement of the
implementation of relevant provisions.

¢ Commenced renovation work of the Commission’s two-storey building.

e (Could achieve a higher productivity in the duty hours of Legal Officers and
Investigation Officers with the new system of sorting complaints that contain
sufficient material for prosecution from the daily received complaints and
directing only such complaints to investigate.

e Could complete the investigations of files opened before 2015 as a result of the
new system introduced to speed up the investigations.

e Could implement the corruption prevention activities with the funding of the
JURE project of UNDP.
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Challenges

Although documentary evidence is necessary to prove corruption cases, it is
difficult to find such evidence.

Lack of interest in public officers to implement a programme against bribery
and corruption in the public sector.

Poor support by the general public in lodging complaints against corrupt
public officials and in giving evidence when required.

Reluctance of parties such as businessmen and investors to report large-scale
bribery and corruption practices of politicians.

Absence of Investigation Officers with expertise in different fields.

Unavailability of sufficient office space for the staff of the Bribery
Commission
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6. Human Resource Profile

6.1. Cadre Management

6.2. How the shortage or excess of
human resources has affected
the performance of the

institution

6.3. Human Resource

Development

61



ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT - CIABOC 2023

6. Human Resource Profile

6.1. Cadre Management

Existing .
Approved Cadre Cadre Vacancies/ Excess
Senior 63 8 35
Tertiary 218 07 211
Secondary 242 112 130
Primary 140 82 58
Total 663 229 434
Investigation Officers serving on
secondment basis (from the Sri 283 226 57
Lanka Police)
Grand Total 946 455 491

6.2. How the shortage or excess of human resources has affected the
performance of the institution.

There will not be an unnecessary expansion of the scope of the officers’ duties if a
sufficient number can be employed and will also enable to provide an efficient and
productive service with proper follow-up.

Therefore, the Commission expects to fill its vacancies in the following manner.

e Approval for new positions was obtained in 2015 paying due attention to the
requirement for a 10-year period ahead, i.e. until 2025.

e Due to the limitation in the available space, action will be taken to fill all the
vacancies after the construction work of the proposed new building is completed.
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6.3. Human Resource Development

Local Trainings

) Name and
2 The Institute designation
= | which conducted | Training programme of the Duration Cost
(%‘3 the training officers
participated
20.02.2023 -
Ministry of Public 22.02.2023
Administration, 23.02.2023
Home Affairs, Online training 07 24.02.2023
1 Provincial Councils | programme for Management | 28.02.2023
" | & Local Management Service Service 01.03.2023
Government Officers (Grade iii) Officers 02.03.2023
recruited on 17.01.2023 03.03.2023
14.03.2023
I;/?acrle;gyegwfen t Master of Professional \L/J\igéyahewa
5 Studies and Accounting Degree Accountant } Rs.265,000.00
" | Commerce. (Internal
(University of Sri Auditor)
Jayawardenapura)
Commission to Legal
Investigate Workshop for the Assistant 26.04.2023 and
3. | Allegations of Efficiency Bar Officers and | 27" Rs.5,590.00
Bribery or Examination Prevention
Corruption Officers
Language Profficiency
4 Department of to be acquired by the 23 Primary Every Monday RS. 75,00000
: . rom 24.04.2023
Official Languages ofﬁcers as per P. A. Level Officers (100 hours) (Rs.750 per
Circular 18/2020 hour)
Language Profficiency q Rs.112,500.00
Department of to be acquired by the Every Tuesday
5, . Auree oy 27 Secondary | g "504.2023 | (Rs.750 per
Official Languages | officers as per P. A. Level Officers
. (150 hours) hour)
Circular 18/2020
Sri Lanka
Capacity Building of Mr. D. A. S. 20.10.2023
Computer .
6. ICT Officers (Grade IT) | N. Kumarasiri | from 9.00 a.m.
Emergency .
on Cyber Security (ICT Officer) | to 3.30 p.m.

Response Team
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S oo 4 =
- )
3 '§ E & E 2 Training Officers participated/
Z |28 Es workshop/ Duration Cost
S &% = = . Designation
= E 2 g 5§ seminar
n e
)
5]
=
=
White Collar Crime Mr.E.N.l. Dharmadasa -CI | 06.02.2023- Incidental
01 Thailand Investigative Skill Mr.S.T. Prasanga - IP 10.02.2023 Allowance
Course USD 480
Advanced Methods Ms.U.L.5.M.Senanayake 102/2023 Incidental
02 India of Crime WPC 06/02/2 Allowance
L Ms. A.M.S.Attanayake 17/02/2023
Investigation USD 1040
WPC
Mrs.K.M.A.Siriwardana .
) In ntal
Asst. Director General Aﬁlcﬂ/‘\e/a;?:e
03 Thailand UNODC Regional Mrs_A.Jayasinghe 14/03/2023 USD 320
Bangkok Workshop Asst. Director General 16/03/2023 Insurance
Rs.7,126.66
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Mrs.M.R.Y.K.Udawela
Deputy Director General
Mrs.R.Wikramasinghe
Deputy Director General
Mrs.G.A.D.Sanjeewani
Asst. Director General
Mrs.L.K.T.D.Dayarathne
Asst. Director (Legal)
Miss.W.U.M.T.D.Bandara
Asst. Director (Legal)

i Incidental
Anti - Corruption Mrs.T.N.Jayaneththl Allowance
Training Course For Asst. Director (Legal) USD 1750
South Korea g .. Mrs.H.M.A.C.Wijesinghe 15/05/2023
04 . the Public Officials : Insurance
Cheongju £ S Lark Asst. Director (Legal) 19/05/2023 RS.42 836.05
ot srLanka Mrs.S.M.A.AP.K. 5:42,836.
Sammandapperuma Other
Asst. Director (Legal) Rs.24,700.00
Mrs.U.Kumarihamy
Asst. Director (Legal)
Mr.M.B.N.Nuwansiri -CI
Conferenceon )
Combating Incidental
Corruption The i o Allowance
Mr. W. K. Damit 31/05/2023-
05 Challenges of - usD 200
Angola Regional Cooperation | Wijeratne - DG 02/06/2023
in the Implementation Insurance
of the UNCAC Rs.3,396.63
Incidental
UNODC Workshop . Allowance
Safeguarding Sport Mr-. Raj Kumar 20/06/2023-
06 Austria . Thirunavukarasu - ASP USD 100
Vienna from Corruption 21/06/2023
Insurance
Rs.3,279.93
Fourth plenary Incidental
meeting of the Global Allowance
07 Austria Operat_lonal Net_work Mr: W. K. Damith 11/07/2023 - USD 280
Vienna of Anti-Corruption Wijeratne - DG 13/07/2023
Law Enforcement Insurance
Authorities Rs.4,673.68
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Other
Rs..9,088.00
Executive Certificate ]
Course For Strategic Miss. K K.D.M II:ﬁldental
- . K.K.D.M. owance
08 _ Manage'ment of Anti Kodithuwakku 31/07/2023 -
Malaysia Corruption 04/08/2023 | USD 175
Progremme Asst. Director (Legal)
UNODC-UNCAC
Additional Training
for Focal Points and
Government Experts
Participating in the Incidental
) second Cycle of the Allowance
Austria Mechanism for the iri
09 _ Mrs. K.M.A. Siriwardhana | 05/09/2023- USD 100
Vienna Review of Asst. Director General 06/09/2023
Implementation of Insurance
the United Nations Rs.3.622.79
Convention against
Corruption (UNCAC)
Investigation of Incidental
10 Corruption related Mr. S.M. Sabry 04/09/2023- | Allowance
India cases and Asset Asst. Dir. (Legal) 15/09/2023
Recovery USD 350
Incidental
JICA Knowledge co- hth Allowance
; Mrs. B.R. Anuththara
1 Griminal sice | Jyesinghe 0102023 | YD 75
' Japan 30/11/2023
response to Asst. Director General Insurance
Corruption
Incidental
Mrs. K H.LS. Sifiward Allowance
South Asia regional rs. K.A.Lo. olriwardana
12 Bangladesh anti-Corruption Asst. Director General 05}11'/3023 ~— | USD 300
11
Workshop Mr. A.H. Nuwan Asaka 09 023 Insurance
Director (Insvestigation)
_ Regional Conference | Justice Deepali 21/11/2023- | Incidental
13. Thailand . p .
Bangkok on Corruption as a Wjesundera (Retired 22/11/2023 Allowance
Facilitator of Judge of the Court of
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trafficking in Persons | Appeal USD 120
and Smuggling of
. ggling @ Insurance
Migrants
3,350.11

Programmes conducted for departmental officers under the JURE project of United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP)

Programme No.of Cost (Rs.)
pro.s
1. Training programmes for Prevention Officers 1 1,247,020.00
2. Capacity building p.rogramlmes for officers ) 762,238.85
other than Prevention Officers
3. Capaaty building programmes for Legal 4 3,108,163.37
Officers
4. Capac!ty t?wldlng. programmes for ) 1,302,982.40
Investigation Officers
Total 9 6,420,404.62

* Briefly explain how training programmes contribute towards the performance
of the institution

Training improves knowledge, skills and attitudes of the employees, resulting in

employee motivation and enhanced performance. Therefore, action is taken to direct
employees to different training programmes.
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CHAPTER SEVEN

7. Compliance Report
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5 5 3
§ 25 T § 8 . c
ISR R 35S w6y
No. Applicable Requirement S85S 2Z3 2gceg
Eh g E S5 € B o888
o s 3 — = O o C <>3 ol
@ O’L882
1 | The following Financial Statements /accounts have been submitted on due date
1.1 | Annual financial statement Complied
1.2 | Advance to public officers account Complied
Trading and Manufacturing Advance
1.3 | Accounts (Commercial Advance - Not Applicable
Accounts)
1.4 | Stores Advance Account - Not Applicable
Special Advance Account (Raid .
1.5 Complied
Advances)
1.6 | Other -
2 Maintenance of Books and Registers (F.R.445)
Fixed assets register has been updated Complied
2.1 | and maintained in terms of Public
Administration Circular 267/2018
Personal emoluments register/ personal | Complied
2.2 | emoluments cards have been updated
and maintained
)3 Register of Audit queries has been Complied
' updated and maintained
"4 Register of Internal Audit reports has Complied
' been updated and maintained
All the monthly accounts summaries Complied
2.5 | (CIGAS) are prepared and submitted to
the Treasury on due date
5 | Register for cheques and money orders Complied
' has been updated and maintained
”7 Inventory register has been updated and | Complied
' maintained
5 g | Stocks Register has been updated and Complied
' maintained
- Register of Losses has been updated Complied

and maintained
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5 S 5
§ 25 T § 8 . c
EEEE 55& .55
No. Applicable Requirement 58S S sZ3 2gceg
+= e X +~ T ©
En = S L o e O 9.z .=
8 o O e 8 L S SN
) z 55 8 E 2
m OsL8&2
210 Register of Liabilities has been updated Complied
’ and maintained
- Register of Counterfoil Books (GA- Complied
' N20) has been updated and maintained
3 Delegation of functions for financial control (FR 135)
- The financial authority has been Complied
' delegated within the institute
The delegation of financial authority Complied
3.2 | has been communicated within the
institute
The authority has been delegated in Complied
13 such a manner so as to pass each
' transaction through two or more
officers
The controls have been adhered to | Complied
by the Accountants in terms of State
3.4 | Account Circular 171/2004 dated
11.05.2014 in using the Government
Payroll Software Package
4 Preparation of Annual Plans
il The annual action plan has been Complied
' prepared
4, | The annual procurement plan has been Complied
' prepared
13 The annual Internal Audit plan has been | Complied
' prepared
44 The annual estimate has been prepared Complied
' and submitted to the NBD due date
The annual cash flow has been Complied
4.5 | submitted to the Treasury Operations
Department on time
5 Audit queries
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Complied/Not
complied)

Brief explanation

for Non-
Compliance

Corrective

actions proposed
to avoid non-

compliance in

future

5.1

All the audit queries have been replied
within the specified time by the Auditor
General

Complied

Internal Audit

6.1

The internal audit plan has been
prepared at the beginning of the year
after consulting the Auditor General in
terms of Financial Regulation134(2))
DMA/1-2019

Complied

6.2

All the internal audit reports have been
replied within one month

Complied

6.3

Copies of all the internal audit reports
have been submitted to the Audit
Management Department in terms of
Sub-section 40(4) of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 2018

Complied

6.4

All the copies of internal audit reports
have been submitted to the Auditor
General in terms of Financial
Regulation 134(3)

Complied

Audit and Management Committee

7.1

Minimum of 04 Audit and Management
Committee meetings have been held
during the year as per DMA Circular 1-
2019

Complied

Asset Management

8.1

The information about purchases of
assets and disposals was submitted to
the Comptroller General's Office in
terms of Paragraph 07 of the Asset
Management Circular No. 01/2017

Complied
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Complied/Not

complied)

Brief explanation

for Non-
Compliance

Corrective

actions proposed
to avoid non-

compliance in

future

8.2

Implementation of the provisions of the
above circular in accordance with
Paragraph 13 of the said circular.

A suitable liaison officer was
appointed to coordinate the
implementation of the provisions of the
circular and the details of the nominated
officer were sent to the Comptroller
General's Office in terms of Paragraph
13 of the aforesaid circular

Complied

83

The annual verification of stores was
conducted and the relevant reports
submitted to the Auditor General on the
due date in terms of Public Finance
Circular No.05/2016

Complied

8.4

Actions for the recommendations on
excesses and deficits that were
disclosed through the annual
verification of stores and other
relating recommendations were
carried out during the period
specified in the circular

Complied

8.5

The disposal of condemned articles had
been carried out in terms of FR 772

Complied

Management of Vehicles

9.1

The daily running charts and monthly
summaries of the vehicles in the pool
had been prepared and submitted to the
Auditor General on the due date.

Complied

9.2

The condemned vehicles had been
disposed of within a period of less than
6 months after condemning.

Complied

9.3

The vehicle log books had been
maintained and updated

Complied

9.4

The action has been taken in terms of
F.R. 103, 104, 109 and 110 with regard

Complied
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Complied/Not
complied)

Brief explanation
for Non-
Compliance

Corrective

actions proposed

to avoid non-

compliance in

future

to every vehicle accident

9.5

The fuel consumption of vehicles has
been re-tested in terms of the provisions
of Paragraph 3.1 of the Public
Administration Circular No.30/2016 of
29.12.2016

Complied

9.6

The absolute ownership of the leased
vehicle log books has been transferred
after the lease term

Complied

10

Management of Bank Accounts

10.1

The bank reconciliation statements had
been prepared, got certified and made
ready for audit on the due date

Complied

10.2

The dormant accounts that had existed
in the year under review or since
previous years have been settled

No such accounts

10.3

The action had been taken in terms of
Financial Regulations regarding
balances that had been disclosed
through bank reconciliation statements
and for which adjustments had to be
made, and those balances been settled
within one month

Complied

11

Utilization of Provisions

Allocated provisions had been spent
without exceeding the limit

Complied

Entering into liabilities not exceeding
the provisions that remained at the end
of the year, after utilizing the provision
provided as per the FR 94(1)

Complied

12

Advances toPublic Officers’ Account

12.1

The limits had been complied with

Complied

12.2

Time analysis had been carried out on
the loans in arrears

Complied
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5 5 3
§ 25 T § 8 . c
: . S 382 568 w6y
No. Applicable Requirement SE= S 2235 =2 58c ¢
E — O E X o E — S @&
(V)] E S L o O .= = a8
o s 3 — = O o C <>3 o 2
@) O 2 (@) =23 <=
< | - o +— o
m OsL8&2
Complied
The loan balances in arrears overdue for
12.3
a year had been settled
13 | General Deposit Account
Action had been taken as per F.R.571 Complied
13.1 | with respect to disposal of lapsed
deposits
The control register for general deposits | Complied
13.2 S
had been updated and maintained
14 | Imprest Account
The balance in the cash book at the end
14.1 | of the year under review had been Complied
remitted to TOD
The ad-hoc sub imprests issued as per | Complied
14.2 | F.R. 371 had been settled within one
month from the completion of the task
The ad-hoc sub imprests not exceeding | Complied
14.3 | the approved limit had been issued
approved as per F.R. 371
The balance of the Imprest Account had | Complied
14.4 | been reconciled monthly with the
Treasury books
15 | Revenue Account
The refunds from the collected revenue
15.1 | had been made in terms of the - No such accounts
regulations
The collected revenue had been directly
15.2 | credited to the revenue account without - Do
crediting to the deposit account.
Report of revenue arrears had i
15.3 | been forwarded to the Auditor Do
General in terms of FR 176
16 | Human Resources Management
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Complied/Not
complied)

Brief explanation

for Non-
Compliance

Corrective

actions proposed
to avoid non-

compliance in

future

16.1

The staff had been maintained within
the approved cadre

Complied

16.2

All members of the staff have been
issued a duty list in writing

Complied

16.3

All reports have been submitted to
MSD in terms of their circular
no.04/2017 dated 20.09.2017

Complied

17

Providing information to the public

17.1

An information officer has been
appointed and a proper register of
information is updated and maintained
in terms of Right to Information Act
and Regulations

Complied

17.2

Information about the institution has
been provided to the public through the
official website and facilities for
public commendations/allegations
have been provided through the
website/ alternative means

Complied

17.3

Bi- annual and Annual reports have
been submitted as per section 08 and10
of the RTI Act

Complied

18

Implementing the citizens charter

18.1

Citizens’/Clients’ Charter has been
formulated and implemented by the
institution in terms of the Public
Administration & Management Circular
number 05/2008 and 05/2018(1)

Complied

18.2

A methodology has been devised by
the institution in order to monitor

Complied
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Complied/Not
complied)

Brief explanation
for Non-
Compliance

Corrective

actions proposed
to avoid non-

compliance in

future

and assess the formulation and
implementation of the Citizens’
Charter/Client’s Charter as per
paragraph 2.3 of the said circular

19

Preparation of the Human Resource Plan

19.1

A human resource plan has been
prepared in terms of the format in
Annexure 02 of Public
Administration Circular No.
02/2018 dated 24.01.2018

Complied

19.2

A minimum training opportunity of
not less than 12 hours per year for
each member of the staff has been
ensured in the aforesaid Human
Resource Plan

Not complied

Unable to provide a
12-hour training to all
officers due to the
inadequacy of funds.

19.3

Annual performance agreements have
been signed for the entire staff based on
the format in Annexure 01 of the
aforesaid circular

Complied

19.4

A senior officer was appointed and
assigned the responsibility of preparing
human resources development plan,
developing a capacity building
programmes and implementing skills
development programmes as per
paragraph No.6.5 of the aforesaid
circular

Complied

20

Responses to Audit Paragraphs

20.1

The shortcomings pointed out in the
audit paragraphs issued by the Auditor
General for the previous years have
been rectified

Complied
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